
210 Stonewall Avenue West • Fayetteville, Georgia 30214 
Telephone (770) 461-6029 • Facsimile (770) 460-4238 

www.fayetteville-ga.gov 

 

 

 

MAYOR 
Edward J. Johnson, Jr. 

COUNCIL 
Mayor Pro Tem 
T. Joe Clark 
Niyah Glover 
Richard J. Hoffman 
Darryl Langford, 
Scott Stacy 

CITY MANAGER 
Ray Gibson 

CITY CLERK 
Anne Barksdale 

DATE: 
4/21/2022 

6:00 PM 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

 

   

Call to Order 

Opening Prayer 

The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag 

Approval of Agenda 

1. Approval of Minutes of the April 7, 2022 Regular City Council Meeting 

RECOGNITIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 

2. Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) Distinguished Budget Presentation Award: 
Presented by Assistant Director of Finance and Administration Carleetha Talmadge 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

3. Consider Ordinance #0-9-22 - Rezoning Request from Darrell Baker to rezone the property located 
at 1302 Highway 85 North, from C-2 (Community Commercial) to C-3 (Highway Commercial), 
Parcel Number 53801011 (6.69 acres) - Public Hearing: Presented by Director of Planning and 
Zoning Denise Brookins. 

NEW BUSINESS 

4. Consider R-12-22 - NPDES Compliance Engineering Services for 2022: Presented by Director of 
Public Services Chris Hindman 

5. Consider R-15-22 - Bid Award for Church Street Park Playground Improvements: Presented by 
Assistant Director of Public Services Cajen Rhodes 

6. Consider Step One Annexation Application from the Fayette County Development Authority for 
four parcels (+/- 412 acres) located within the northeast quadrant the Highway 54/Tyrone Road 

http://www.fayetteville-ga.gov/


210 Stonewall Avenue West • Fayetteville, Georgia 30214 
Telephone (770) 461-6029 • Facsimile (770) 460-4238 

www.fayetteville-ga.gov 

intersection (Parcel Nos. 0705 003, 0712 015, 0712 074 and 0713 020): Presented by Director of 
Community and Economic Development David Rast 

REPORTS AND COMMENTS 

City Manager & Staff Reports 

City Council and Committee Reports 

Mayors Comments & Public Comments 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

7. Executive Session - Potential Litigation 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

http://www.fayetteville-ga.gov/


 
TO:  Mayor and Council  

 

VIA:   Ray Gibson, City Manager 

 

CC: Mike Bush, Director of Finance and Administration; Anne Barksdale, City 

Clerk; Alan Jones, Asst. City Manager 

 

FROM:   Carleetha Talmadge  

   

DATE: 03/24/2022 

 

SUBJECT:   Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) Distinguished Budget 

Presentation Award 

 

 

We are pleased to announce that the City of Fayetteville has again received the GFOA 

Distinguished Budget Presentation Award for FY2022. This award represents the highest form of 

recognition in governmental budgeting. The award represents a significant achievement by the 

entity. It reflects the commitment of the governing body and staff to meeting the highest principles 

of governmental budgeting. This is the sixteenth (16th) year that the City has received this budget 

award. Many thanks to our Finance Director, Mike Bush for his guidance, to our Senior 

Accountant, Karen Austin for taking on the task again next year of putting this document together, 

to our PIO team, who never fails to assist us when we call on them, and to all of departments, thank 

you for assisting in getting the finance department the information that we needed. 

  

 
 



 

                      

                         

                           

                         

                        

                       

TO:   Planning and Zoning Commission 
 
FROM:   Denise Brookins, Director of Planning and Zoning 
 
VIA:  David Rast, Director of Community and Economic Development  
 
DATE:    March 30, 2022 
 
SUBJECT:   Consider request from Darrell Baker to rezone the property located at 1302 

Highway 85 North, Parcel No. 53801011 (6.69 total acres) from C-2 (Community 
Commercial) to C-3 (Highway Commercial) and a second request for a special 
exception from Section 94-167 (7) from the City of Fayetteville Code of 
Ordinances to permit an automobile dealership in a C-3 zoning district. 

 

 
Existing conditions 
 

Address 1302 Highway 85 N 

Parcel Number 053801011 

Acreage 6.69 acres 

Zoning C-2 (Community Commercial) 

Future Land Use Suburban Commercial 

Current use Furniture Store 

Utilities Water and Sewer 

 
Background information 

 
The subject parcel is located along Highway 85 North and New Hope Road. The property currently contains 
a building just under 65,000 square feet and the current occupant is Havertys. The furniture store will 
close permanently later this year. The applicant is requesting to rezone the parcel to operate a car 
dealership. This is not permitted in the C-2 (Community Commercial) zoning district.  The proposed C-3 
(Highway Commercial) zoning district permits automobile dealerships with an approved Special Exception 
permit.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
Surrounding Property: 

 
The adjoining properties include the Long Horn Steakhouse chain and a residential home along 
New Hope Place.  There is a used car dealership and storage facility directly across from the 
property. The other developments along Highway 85 North consist of major retailers like Lowes 
and Target, several fast food restaurants, medical services, and some automotive related 
businesses.  
 

 
 

Direction Zoning Current use Future Land Use 

North 
R-40 (Single Family) and C-2 (Community 

Commercial)  
Residential and Restaurant 

Suburban Office 

South 
County  Zoning Designation (C-H, Highway 

Commercial District) and C-3 Highway 
Commercial 

Storage Facility, Retail, Tire 
Store,   and Car Dearlership  

Suburban Office 

East C-H Highway Commercial  Retail and Restaurant 
Suburban Office 

West R-30  (Single Family) Residential Suburban Office 

 
ZONING MAP 

 
 
  
 
 
 
 



 
 
FUTURE LAND USE 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Rezoning standards for review 

 
Sec. 94-92. - Zoning standards. 
 
In exercising its power to zone and rezone property, the mayor and city council shall consider 
such standards and factors which it finds relevant in balancing the interest in promoting the 
public health, safety, morality, or general welfare against the right to the unrestricted use of the 
property. Such standards shall include the following: 
 
(1) The extent to which the proposed zoning amendment and use is consistent with and 

promotes the current comprehensive plan policies, comprehensive plan future land use 
map, zoning map, and zoning ordinances. 

 
Given the existing development patterns and other uses along the corridor, the proposed zoning 
designation is compatible with the adjoining land uses facing Highway 85. The proposed use is 
compatible with the comprehensive plan and the suburban commercial land use designation. The 
designation encourages conventional commercial developments that typically accommodates 
large anchor tenants to promote convenient parking and vehicular access, as well as parking lot 
visibility.  
 
(2) The existing uses of and the present zoning of the subject property and nearby property. 
 
There are residential homes west of the site located on the unincorporated parcels in Fayette 
County. The present zoning allows for some commercial developments.  This C-2 zoning district 
was created to provide and protect areas for community shopping and service facilities 

Suburban Commercial 



convenient to residential neighborhoods. The most recent developments in the area have all 
been retail trade and service establishments.  
 
 
(3) The extent to which the subject property is devalued by the existing zoning classification 

in relation to similarly zoned and similarly situated property. 
 
There is no specific evidence that property values are diminished by the current zoning 
restrictions. 
 
(4) The extent to which the devaluation of the subject property, if any, promotes the 

health, safety, morals or general welfare of the public. 
 
The current zoning designation does not further promote the health, safety, morals or general 
welfare of the public. 
 
(5) The relative gain to the public as compared to the hardship, if any, imposed on the 

property owner by the present zoning. 
 
The harm to the public would be minimal given the size of the property and surrounding 
developments.  The setback restriction and tree saved area provides a buffer for the residential 
homes.  
 
(6) The suitability of the subject property for the proposed zoning and proposed purposes. 
 
Given the current uses within the general vicinity, the property is suitable for commercial zoning. 
 
(7) The length of time the subject property has been vacant as zoned, considered in the 

context of land development in the vicinity of the property, and legitimate efforts to 
develop or sell the property as presently zoned. 

 
The property is not vacant and the current development opened in 1995.  
 
(8) The present population density pattern, and the effect of the proposed zoning and use 

on the environment and on public facilities, including, but not limited to, schools, 
utilities, water, sewer, streets, and considering the expected increased public cost 
thereof. 

 
Public facilities in this area are adequate and there is no evidence the rezoning request would 
have any impact on the environment, public facilities and/or streets. 
 
(9) Whether or not the proposed zoning and proposed use will cause a decrease or increase 

in the value of surrounding properties for the use for which they are presently zoned 
and used. 

 



There is no evidence the rezoning would adversely impact the use and/or value of adjoining 
developments or properties. 
 
 (10) The possible effects of the proposed zoning change and proposed use on the character 

of the zoning district, existing land use pattern, and architectural harmony of the 
subject area. 

 
The applicant is not proposing any changes to the existing site. The existing land use is 
commercial and the proposed zoning designation does fit with land use pattern along Highway 
85.   
 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Staff finds the rezoning as proposed is consistent with the future land use designation, and 
strategies associated with the suburban commercial component of the comprehensive plan.  
 
Based on these findings and in consideration of the established rezoning standards, Staff 
recommends APPROVAL with the following condition: 
 

1. The buffer and tree saved area along New Hope Place  shall be maintain as long as the 
adjacent property is occupied with a residential use.   

2. The site shall be accessed from New Hope Road and Highway 85, request for access along 
New Hope Place shall be subject to approval by the City Engineer.  

 
 
Planning and Zoning Commission Recommendation -  03/16/2022: 
 

The Planning and Zoning Commission unanimously voted to recommend Mayor and City Council 
approve the rezoning request with the following conditions. 
 

1. The buffer and tree saved area along New Hope Place shall be maintained as long as 
the adjacent property is occupied with a residential use. 
2. The site shall be accessed from New Hope Road and Highway 85, request for access 
along New Hope Place shall be subject to approval by the City Engineer. 

 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission unanimously voted to approve the Special Exception 
request contingent on the approval of the rezoning request by the Mayor and City Council. 



PR
OPO

SE
D 

AUTO
MOTIV

E S
ALES

 AREA

41
,97

0 S
F

20
0.7

5'±

202.67'±

219.17'±

30
.75

'±30.33'±

17
0.0

'±

12
0.0

'±

PR
OPO

SE
D 

SE
RVICE/R

EP
AIR AREA

24
,32

0 S
F

(62
 IN

TE
RNAL P

ARKIN
G SP

ACES
)

EXISTING STORM WATER
MANAGEMENT POND

(TO REMAIN)

EXISTING LOADING AREA
TO REMAIN (7 TOTAL)

EXISTING LOADING AREA
TO REMAIN (2 TOTAL)

27.5'

24
'

21
.2'

24
'

21.4'
29

.4'

EXISTING F.H.

EXISTING F.H.

EXISTING F.H.

EXISTING F.H.

15
.5'

31.8'

17.7'
17.3'

26.2'

17.7'
17.3'

25.3'

16'

36'

32'

EXISTING
PARKING LOT
(TO REMAIN)

REAR
SERVICE
DRIVE

EXISTING DUMPSTER
ENCLOSURE (TO

REMAIN)

BU
ILD

ING TO
 REM

AIN

BU
ILD

ING TO
 REM

AIN

9'
9.4

'

9'

9'

9.4
'

9'

EXISTING RIGHT-IN
ONLY DRIVEWAY
(TO REMAIN)

EXISTING FULL
ACCESS DRIVEWAY

(TO REMAIN)

EXISTING POND
POINT OF
DISCHARGE

13
9.8

'

72.9'

66
.5'

11.9'

21'

DATE

REVISIONS

NOTICE:

C

Know what's below.
      Call before you dig.

24 HOUR 
EMERGENCY CONTACT

0

SCALE: 1"=40'

40'20'

SHEET NO.

 DRAWN BY: RMD

 CHECKED BY: BEK

 PROJECT MANAGER: BEK

CA
D 

FI
LE

:

 JOB #: ###

 FILE CODE: N/A

LA
N

D 
LO

T 
67

 - 
5T

H 
DI

ST
RI

CT

13
02

 H
IG

HW
AY

 8
5 

N
O

RT
H

CI
TY

 O
F 

FA
YE

TT
EV

IL
LE

FA
YE

TT
E 

CO
UN

TY
, G

EO
RG

IA

SI
TE

 D
EV

EL
O

PE
M

EN
T 

PL
AN

S

SI
TE

 - 
ZO

N
IN

G 
PL

AN

02.18.2022

C200

--
--

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 A

U
TO

M
O

BI
LE

 S
AL

ES
 &

 S
ER

VI
CE

FO
RC

AS
T 

RE
AL

 E
ST

AT
E 

DE
V.

SITE AREA
EXISTING     PROPOSED

TOTAL PROPERTY AREA: 6.679 AC (290,945 S.F.)     6.679 AC (290,945 S.F.)
DISTURBED AREA: 0.000± AC (0± S.F.) 0.000± AC (0± S.F.)
IMPERVIOUS AREA: 3.714± AC (161,775± S.F.)  55.6% 3.714± AC (161,775± S.F.)  55.6%
PERVIOUS AREA: 2.965± AC (129,170± S.F.)  44.4% 2.965± AC (129,170± S.F.)  44.4%

ZONING CLASSIFICATION    
EXISTING PROPOSED

JURISDICTION: CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE
CURRENT ZONING: C-2 (COMMUNITY COMMERCIAL) C-3 (HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL)
ADJACENT ZONING: C-2 (NORTH) AND R-40 (NORTH) C-2 (NORTH) AND R-40 (NORTH)
OVERLAY DISTRICT: HWY 85 OVERLAY HWY 85 OVERLAY

BUILDING SETBACKS
EXISTING (C-2 ZONING) PROPOSED (C-3 ZONING)

FRONT YARD 60-FT (MAJOR STREET)     40-FT (MAJOR STREET)
FRONT YARD 40-FT (MINOR STREET)     30-FT (MINOR STREET)
SIDE YARD 0-FT 0-FT
REAR YARD 12-FT 14-FT
MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHT 60-FT 60-FT
MAXIMUM IMPERVIOUS COVERAGE 60%    60%

BUILDING SUMMARY       
EXISTING PROPOSED

BUILDING AREA: 66,290 SF 66,290 SF
ENTRANCE CANOPY:      292 SF     292 SF

PARKING SUMMARY   
EXISTING (FURNITURE SALES) PROPOSED (AUTOMOBILE SALES)

PARKING REQUIREMENTS 1/500 SF SHOWROOM 1/EMPLOYEE + 1/250 SF BUILDING
SHOWROOM / BUILDING AREA 63,000 SF 41,970 SF
EMPLOYEES N/A 20
TOTAL PARKING REQUIRED 126 SPACES 188 SPACES
PARKING PROVIDED 126 SPACES (8 ADA INCLUDED) 188 SPACES (8 ADA INCLUDED)
LOADING AREAS 9 9

SITE VICINITY MAP

GENERAL NOTES:
1. THE EXISTING FURNITURE SALES BUILDING IS PROPOSED TO BE RE-PURPOSED FOR AN

AUTOMOBILE SALES AND SERVICE FACILITY.   THE INTENT OF THIS REDEVELOPMENT IS
TO REZONE THE PROPERTY FOR THIS SPECIFIC USE AND TO UTILIZE THE EXISTING
PARKING LOT, UTILITIES, LOADING AREAS, STORM WATER CONVEYANCE AND
MANAGEMENT.

2. EXISTING SITE IS CURRENTLY SERVED WITH FAYETTE COUNTY WATER AND SEWER
SERVICES.

3. WE INTEND TO RE-USE AND MAINTAIN ALL TREE BUFFER AREAS AND TREE ISLANDS
CURRENTLY ON THE SITE.

4. NO FLOODPLAIN, WETLANDS AND STREAMS EXISTS ON THE PROPERTY.
5. NO CEMETERIES EXIST ON THE PROPERTY.

DEVELOPER/APPLICANT:
ForCAST REAL ESTATE DEV.
124 CLOISTER DRIVE
PEACHTREE CITY, GA 30269
CONTACT: MATT BOONE
PHONE: 770-315-8467

ENGINEER:
ATWELL, LLC
1800 PARKWAY PLACE
SUITE 700
MARIETTA, GA 30067
CONTACT: BRIAN KAY, PE
PHONE: 770-900-6848





A B C D D.3 D.7 E E.3 E.6 F G H J

123456

123456

ABCDEFGHJ

1.9

1'

5'
-6

"
3'

-6
"

5'
-1

"

ILLUMINATED "TESLA" SIGN BY SIGN VENDOR.
PROVIDE BLOCKING AS REQUIRED. PROVIDE
POWER TO J BOX BEHIND SIGN, CONNECT TO
TIMER. (PROVIDE BACKLIT IF PERMIT ALLOWS)

DECORATIVE CROWNS
TO BE REMOVED

DECORATIVE CROWNS
TO BE REMOVEDDECORATIVE CROWNS

TO BE REMOVED

DECORATIVE CROWNS
TO BE REMOVED

DECORATIVE CROWNS
TO BE REMOVED

FULL VISION HIGH-SPEED ROLL
UP DOOR (FOR DELIVERY OR

PRIMARY EXIT)

FULL VISION HIGH-SPEED ROLL
UP DOOR (FOR DELIVERY OR

PRIMARY EXIT)

NON-ILLUMINATED "SERVICE" SIGN
BY SIGN VENDOR. PROVIDE
BLOCKING AS REQUIRED.

9"

12'-0"

1'
-0

"

FULL VISION HIGH-SPEED
ROLL UP DOOR

FULL VISION HIGH-SPEED ROLL
UP DOOR (FOR DELIVERY OR

PRIMARY EXIT)

TESLA WORDMARK
PROVIDED BY SIGN VENDOR

8'
-0

" M
IN

TESLA WORDMARK
PROVIDED BY SIGN VENDOR

8'
-0

" M
IN

SMOOTH STUCCO
FINISH, PAINT PT2-
"CHANTILLY LACE"

SMOOTH STUCCO
FINISH, PAINT PT2-
"CHANTILLY LACE"

SMOOTH STUCCO
FINISH, PAINT PT5-

"TROUT GREY"

SMOOTH STUCCO
FINISH, PAINT PT5-

"TROUT GREY"

SMOOTH STUCCO
FINISH, PAINT PT5-

"TROUT GREY"

SMOOTH STUCCO
FINISH, PAINT PT2-
"CHANTILLY LACE"

SMOOTH STUCCO
FINISH, PAINT PT2-
"CHANTILLY LACE"

SMOOTH STUCCO
FINISH, PAINT PT5-

"TROUT GREY"

SMOOTH STUCCO
FINISH, PAINT PT5-

"TROUT GREY"

SMOOTH STUCCO
FINISH, PAINT PT5-

"TROUT GREY"
SMOOTH STUCCO

FINISH, PAINT PT5-
"TROUT GREY"

EXISTING DOORS TO REMAIN

NA I 1302 GA-85 FAYETTEVILLE, GA 30214 I USA

*PLEASE NOTE: ANY SUBSEQUENT REVISION TO AN APPROVED CONCEPT WILL CAUSE DELAY AND IMPACT COST

SCALE: 1/32" = 1'-0"

FAYETTEVILLE - TESLA CENTER - WARM CLIMATE

February 22, 2022

ELEVATION
TRT ID - 27805 

©Copyright 2021 Tesla Motors, Inc. All rights reserved. Proprietary and Confidential Business Information
CONFIDENTIAL

NORTH ELEVATION

WEST ELEVATION

SOUTH ELEVATION

EAST ELEVATION



A B C D D.3 D.7 E E.3 E.6 F G H J

123456

123456

ABCDEFGHJ

1.9

1'

5'
-6

"
3'

-6
"

5'
-1

"

ILLUMINATED "TESLA" SIGN BY SIGN VENDOR.
PROVIDE BLOCKING AS REQUIRED. PROVIDE
POWER TO J BOX BEHIND SIGN, CONNECT TO
TIMER. (PROVIDE BACKLIT IF PERMIT ALLOWS)

DECORATIVE CROWNS
TO BE REMOVED

DECORATIVE CROWNS
TO BE REMOVEDDECORATIVE CROWNS

TO BE REMOVED

DECORATIVE CROWNS
TO BE REMOVED

DECORATIVE CROWNS
TO BE REMOVED

FULL VISION HIGH-SPEED ROLL
UP DOOR (FOR DELIVERY OR

PRIMARY EXIT)

FULL VISION HIGH-SPEED ROLL
UP DOOR (FOR DELIVERY OR

PRIMARY EXIT)

NON-ILLUMINATED "SERVICE" SIGN
BY SIGN VENDOR. PROVIDE
BLOCKING AS REQUIRED.

9"

12'-0"

1'
-0

"

FULL VISION HIGH-SPEED
ROLL UP DOOR

FULL VISION HIGH-SPEED ROLL
UP DOOR (FOR DELIVERY OR

PRIMARY EXIT)

TESLA WORDMARK
PROVIDED BY SIGN VENDOR

8'
-0

" M
IN

TESLA WORDMARK
PROVIDED BY SIGN VENDOR

8'
-0

" M
IN

SMOOTH STUCCO
FINISH, PAINT PT2-
"CHANTILLY LACE"

SMOOTH STUCCO
FINISH, PAINT PT2-
"CHANTILLY LACE"

SMOOTH STUCCO
FINISH, PAINT PT5-

"TROUT GREY"

SMOOTH STUCCO
FINISH, PAINT PT5-

"TROUT GREY"

SMOOTH STUCCO
FINISH, PAINT PT5-

"TROUT GREY"

SMOOTH STUCCO
FINISH, PAINT PT2-
"CHANTILLY LACE"

SMOOTH STUCCO
FINISH, PAINT PT2-
"CHANTILLY LACE"

SMOOTH STUCCO
FINISH, PAINT PT5-

"TROUT GREY"

SMOOTH STUCCO
FINISH, PAINT PT5-

"TROUT GREY"

SMOOTH STUCCO
FINISH, PAINT PT5-

"TROUT GREY"
SMOOTH STUCCO

FINISH, PAINT PT5-
"TROUT GREY"

EXISTING DOORS TO REMAIN

NA I 1302 GA-85 FAYETTEVILLE, GA 30214 I USA

*PLEASE NOTE: ANY SUBSEQUENT REVISION TO AN APPROVED CONCEPT WILL CAUSE DELAY AND IMPACT COST

SCALE: 1/32" = 1'-0"

FAYETTEVILLE - TESLA CENTER - WARM CLIMATE

February 22, 2022

ELEVATION
TRT ID - 27805 

©Copyright 2021 Tesla Motors, Inc. All rights reserved. Proprietary and Confidential Business Information
CONFIDENTIAL

NORTH ELEVATION

WEST ELEVATION

SOUTH ELEVATION

EAST ELEVATION







Proposed Ordinance: #0-9-22 
Subject Matter: Rezoning of 6.69-acre 1302 Highway 85 N (Parcel 053801011) 
from C-2 (Community Commercial) to C-3 (Highway Commercial)  
Date of Published Notice of Public Hearing:  April 1, 2022 
Date of Planning and Zoning Commission Public Hearing:  March 16, 2022 
Date First Presented at City Council Public Meeting:  April 21, 2022 
Date of Public Hearing and Adoption:  April 21, 2022 
 
 

 
 
 

CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE 
COUNTY OF FAYETTE 
STATE OF GEORGIA 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 0-09-22 
CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, GEORGIA 

 
PREAMBLE AND FINDINGS 

 
 
 The City of Fayetteville (the “City”) has received an application for rezoning by Darrell 
Baker for the property located at 1302 Highway 85 N, Fayetteville GA, Parcel No. 053801011 (9.64 
acres) described in EXHIBIT "A".  Said parcel of property is presently zoned C-2 (Community 
Commercial).  The applicant desires to rezone the parcel to zoned C-3 (Highway Commercial). 

 
The City has given notice to the public of this proposed rezoning as required by 

law and public hearings have been conducted as required by law.  The City complied with 
the requirements of O.C.G.A. § 36-36-4 and § 36-36-5 prior to the adoption of this 
Ordinance.   
 
 

ORDINANCE 
 
 IT IS HEREBY ADOPTED AND ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 

ARTICLE I 
 The zoning classification of the property described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto 
and incorporated herein, shall be, and is hereby established as C-3 (Highway Commercial), 
pursuant to the City of Fayetteville’s Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance, and in accordance 
with the understandings and conditions imposed by the Mayor and City Council. 
 



 2 

 The City’s new ordinance classification upon the described property shall become 
immediately effective.  The City’s Comprehensive Zoning Map is hereby amended to 
reflect this rezoning. 
 

ARTICLE II 
 
 Any ordinance or part of any ordinance in conflict herewith is hereby repealed. 
 

ARTICLE III 
 
 If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or other portion of this 
ordinance for any reason is held invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed as a separate, distinct, and independent 
provision, and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portion hereof. 
 

ARTICLE IV 
 
 This ordinance shall become immediately effective upon its adoption, subject to 
the any conditions contained in the minutes of the City Council, which are part of this 
ordinance; any representations submitted by the applicant to the City Council, accepted 
by the City Council, and reflected in the minutes of the City Council; all of which 
representations shall be an amendment to the rezoning application and a part of this 
ordinance. 
 
 
  



 3 

BE IT RESOLVED, that the Mayor and Council of the City of Fayetteville, Georgia 
do hereby adopt the attached City of Fayetteville ordinance. 
 
SO RESOLVED, this 21ST  day of April, 2022. 
 
Attest:  
 
 
_____________________________   ______________________________ 
Edward J. Johnson, Jr., Mayor    T. Joe Clark, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
Attest:                  ______________________________ 
       Niyah Glover, Councilmember 
 
_____________________________   ______________________________ 
Anne Barksdale, City Clerk    Richard J. Hoffman, Councilmember 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Darryl Langford, Councilmember 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Scott Stacy, Councilmember 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 4 

Exhibit “A” 
 

Property Survey 

 
 



 
TO: Mayor and Council 

 

VIA: Ray Gibson, City Manager   

 

FROM: Chris Hindman, Director of Public Services     

   

DATE: 4-05-2022   

 

SUBJECT: Resolution R-12-22 NPDES Compliance for 2022   

 

 
 

Staff has reviewed Task Order Form 209E for the work required to complete the 2022 Annual 

Report from ISE, that is mandated by the EPD to be completed each year to be in compliance with 

the City’s NPDES Phase II Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) stormwater permit. 

The GA EPD requires the City to submit the annual report on or before February 15, 2023. The 

work outlined in the TOF will address necessary requirements set forth by EPD. The total cost of 

the project will be $44,890 and the money will come out of the stormwater operating budget.  

 

City staff has relied on the engineering consultant with previous compliance years through the 

Engineering Design Services Contract which was last approved on November 2019. Staff is 

requesting that we be allowed once again to use this approved contract for these compliance 

services.  

 

I am recommending approval of TOF #209E to release Integrated Science and Engineering to 

begin work on the Annual Report. I have attached the TOF for your review.  

 
 



 
P:\Fayetteville GA\Client Mgmt\TOFs\TOF 209E 2022 NDPES Compliance Assistance.docx 
 Page 1 of 6 

 
 

TASK ORDER FORM 
1039 Sullivan Road, Suite 200, Newnan, GA 30265 

(p) 678.552.2106   (f) 678.552.2107 
 
 
To: Chris Hindman Date: March 21, 2022 
Company: City of Fayetteville From: Jason Ray, GISP 
Address: 240 South Glynn Street Copy to:       
 Fayetteville, GA 30214        
    
Project: 2022 NPDES Phase II Permit Compliance Activities TOF #: 209E 

 

BACKGROUND
Integrated Science & Engineering, Inc. (ISE) has prepared this Task Order Form (TOF) in accordance with 
our Engineering Design Services Contract dated November 2019. The City wishes to implement programs 
described in its National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Phase II Municipal Separate 
Storm Sewer System (MS4) Permit Stormwater Management Plan (SWMP), as submitted on June 1, 2018 in 
order to maintain compliance with the City’s NPDES Phase II Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System 
(MS4) stormwater permit.  This TOF is formulated to address the completion of those tasks within the 
SWMP that have a deadline on or before December 31, 2022, and which will not be completed in-house by 
City staff. 
 
Please note that the scope of work outlined herein does not address all of the NPDES Phase II compliance 
elements for 2022, and the City staff will have to implement the other compliance tasks not addressed in this 
TOF unless otherwise authorized.  Please refer to the City’s NPDES Phase II SWMP and the City’s 2021 
Annual Report for additional information. 
 
 

SCOPE OF SERVICES
Task 1 – Annual Report Production for Delivery to EPD 
ISE will work with City staff to collect information on programs implemented during the 2022 reporting year.  
ISE will then develop an Annual Report for the City.  ISE will meet with City staff to discuss the Annual 
Report and solicit comments from staff to assist with report preparation. On behalf of the City, ISE will 
submit the Annual Report to the EPD by the due date of February 15, 2023.  EPD comments to the Annual 
Report will be addressed by ISE on a time and expense basis.   
 
Deliverables: 

• 1 copy of the 2022 Annual Report 
 
Task 2 – MS4 Inspection 
During the development of the SWMP, the City was divided into 5 sectors that are to be inspected over the 
course of the permit (December 2018 – December 2022).  The purpose of the sectors is to ensure that over the 
course of the permit, the entire MS4 is inspected.   



TASK ORDER FORM 
 
 

 
P:\Fayetteville GA\Client Mgmt\TOFs\TOF 209E 2022 NDPES Compliance Assistance.docx 
 Page 2 of 6 

 
For the 2021 reporting period, ISE will inspect all MS4 stormwater structures within the shaded area shown 
on the figure below.  It should be noted that this is the last inspection year of the 5-year permit term.  At the 
completion of 2022 100% of the City will have been inspected.  In 2023 a new period will start and the 
inspections will start over.   As in previous reporting periods, the results of the stormwater structure 
inspections will be tabulated on a spreadsheet for inclusion into the City’s stormwater annual report. 
Following the completion of field inspection activities, a copy of the spreadsheet will be provided to the City 
so the City may assess and schedule any potential maintenance and/or repair activities. 
 
Additionally, ISE will provide a copy of the database to the City in a GIS format of the updated MS4 
information.  ISE will also take pictures of all structures as well as photograph all accessible pipes to evaluate 
structural conditions.  After all field work has been completed, an infrastructure report will be created that is 
based on the infrastructure inspections.  The report will contain information on pipes/structures that need 
attention from the City.   
 

2022 MS4 Inspection Area 

 
 
Deliverables: 

• GIS Geodatabase of inspected MS4 structures 
• Infrastructure Report 
• Excel Database of inventoried structures with condition assessment 

 



TASK ORDER FORM 
 
 

 
P:\Fayetteville GA\Client Mgmt\TOFs\TOF 209E 2022 NDPES Compliance Assistance.docx 
 Page 3 of 6 

Task 3 – Dry Weather Screening 
In accordance with the City’s approved SWMP, the City is required to complete 100% of dry weather 
screening within the 5-year permit period.  It should be noted that this is the last inspection year of the 5-year 
permit term.  At the completion of 2022 100% of the City will have been inspected.  In 2023 a new period 
will start and the inspections will start over.  Dry weather screening will be performed according to the City’s 
dry weather screening procedures approved by the EPD.  The EPD approved dry weather screening checklist 
will also be filled out for each outfall visited and inspected.  The checklists will be delivered in a format that 
can be easily inserted into the City’s 2022 Annual Report.  Additionally, this task will include preparation of 
a map for insertion into the Annual Report.  This effort will constitute Level 1 visual screening. 
 
 

2022 Dry Weather Screening Area 

 
 
If a dry weather discharge is present, the discharge will be tester per EPD requirements for pH, temperature, 
and conductivity, utilizing an in-situ water quality meter and field observations noted.  Additionally, a sample 
will be collected and analyzed for fluoride, surfactants, and fecal coliform (under certain circumstances) by a 
laboratory (Analytical Environmental Services).  This effort will constitute Level 2 in-situ water quality 
screening. 
 
Source Tracing 
Source tracing activities will need to be undertaken if the dry weather screening data indicates that there is a 
potential water quality impairment present.  The City will be notified immediately if the in-situ parameters or 



TASK ORDER FORM 
 
 

 
P:\Fayetteville GA\Client Mgmt\TOFs\TOF 209E 2022 NDPES Compliance Assistance.docx 
 Page 4 of 6 

visual observations indicated that there is potential illicit discharge prior to beginning any source tracing 
activities.  ISE will not initiate source tracing activities without prior authorization of the City. 
 
Source tracing will involve following the MS4 system “upstream” in an attempt to identify the source of the 
non-stormwater discharge.  Please note that the NPDES Phase II permit requires that the City source trace 
100% of the identified illicit discharges and notify the illicit discharger to cease the activity, if the source 
tracing clearly documents the source.  In the event that the source cannot be definitively identified, the City is 
only required to document the activities undertaken and the findings.  A checklist will be filled out for each 
source tracing exercise.  The checklist will be in a format that can be easily inserted in the City’s 2020 
Annual Report. 
 
In the event that ISE performs a source tracing work effort.  The estimated cost for ISE to conduct the work 
will be based on a “per source tracing exercise”, not to exceed three hours of field time by the ISE staff 
person.  If the flow cannot be clearly identified within a three-hour time frame, the work will be documented 
and provided to the City for possible further investigation. 
   
Task 4 – Detention Pond / WQ Device Map & Inspection 
The City must inventory all publicly-owned and permittee owned detention pond/water quality devices.  
Additionally, the inventory must include all privately-owned detention pond/water quality devices designed 
after December 9, 2008. Recently, the City’s pond inventory was revised for new Stormwater Management 
Plan.  The City must inspect 20% of these ponds every year for the next 5 years to ensure that 100% of the 
inventory has been inspected.   During the 2022 reporting period ISE will inspect 5 ponds.  It should be noted 
that this is the last inspection year of the 5-year permit term.  At the completion of 2022 100% of the City will 
have been inspected.  If any new ponds were added in 2022, those ponds will need to be inspected as well.    
ISE will conduct an inspection of the ponds and prepare an inspection form summarizing the findings of the 
inspection as well as prepare a letter to the owner of the pond outlining recommended maintenance activities. 
 
Task 5 – Microbial Source Tracing (MST) 
Previously, the City conducted a stream walk of the unnamed tributary to Nash Creek.  Recently, EPD 
recommended that the stream walk BMP be removed and replaced with an activity that will help address the 
pollutant of concern (POC), fecal coliform. The U.S. EPA has approved the MST methodology for 
determining the source of fecal pathogen contamination in environmental samples.  ISE will conduct MST 
sampling at two monitoring sites on Nash Creek and two monitoring sites on Perry Creek.   
 
Task 6 – Impaired Waters Sampling 
During the 2017 reporting period, the City created two impaired waters monitoring and implementation plans 
for Ginger Cake Creek and Whitewater Creek.  Both of these streams are impaired for Biota F.  For each 
impaired stream, water quality monitoring will be conducted during six (6) wet weather events and two (2) 
dry weather events per year.  Three (3) wet events and one (1) dry event will be monitored during the summer 
period from May – October and three (3) wet events and one (1) dry event will be monitored during the 
winter period from November - April.  The sampling frequency is in accordance with the Long-term Ambient 
Trend Monitoring procedures describe in the Metropolitan North Georgia Water Planning District’s 
Standards and Methodologies for Surface Water Monitoring.   
 
 



TASK ORDER FORM 
 
 

 
P:\Fayetteville GA\Client Mgmt\TOFs\TOF 209E 2022 NDPES Compliance Assistance.docx 
 Page 5 of 6 

Task 7 – Impaired Waters Plan Annual Reports 
Following completion of sampling for the City’s annual long term monitoring program (completed under a 
separate authorization), ISE will prepare a summary report for the sampling along with other compliance data 
from the City’s SWMP program in support of the Impaired Waters Plans for Morning Creek, the unnamed 
tributary to Nash Creek, Ginger Cake Creek, and Whitewater Creek, which will be included in the annual 
report in Task 1.   
 
Deliverables: 

• Impaired Waters Monitoring & Implementation Report for Ginger Cake Creek  
• Impaired Waters Monitoring & Implementation Report for Unnamed Tributary to Nash Creek 
• Impaired Waters Monitoring & Implementation Report for Whitewater Creek 
• Impaired Waters Monitoring & Implementation Report for Morning Creek 

 
Task 8 – Municipal Facility Inspection 
The City’s SWMP requires the City to inspect 100% of Municipal facilities over the course of the 5-year 
permit term.  In 2019, the City developed a list of all City facilities.  The list needs to be reviewed and 
updated if any new facilities have been added.  During the reporting period, the City is required to inspect 
20% of the facilities on the inventory.  It should be noted that this is the last inspection year of the 5-year 
permit term.  At the completion of 2022 100% of the City will have been inspected.  In order to complete 
100%, ISE will inspect 1 facility during the reporting period. 
 
Task 9 – Pre-Submittal Planning Meeting 
ISE staff will meet with City staff, prior to the end of the permit year, to discuss the SWMP and ensure that 
all tasks are discussed and properly planned.  It is anticipated that the meeting will be conducted at the Public 
Works facility at a time to be determined.  The purpose will be to plan any final efforts and ensure that 
documentation of the tasks is planned to avoid any confusion prior to the end of the permit year. 
 
 

SCHEDULE
ISE will complete Tasks 2 through 6 and Tasks 8 and 9 by the regulatory deadline of December 31, 2022.  
Tasks 1 and 7 will be completed by February 15, 2023.   

 

FEE ESTIMATE
Task Description       Contract Amount    
Task 1 – Annual Report Production for Delivery to EPD  $5,500 (Lump Sum) 
Task 1.1 – Address EPD Comments     $1,500 (Hourly, if Required) 
Task 2 – MS4 Inspection      $23,000 (Lump Sum) 
Task 3 – Dry Weather Screening     $2,600 (Lump Sum) 
Task 3.1 – Dry Weather Flow Testing    $1,090 (Hourly, if Required) 
Task 4 – Detention Pond / WQ Device Map & Inspection  $2,000 (Lump Sum) 
Task 5 – Microbial Source Tracing      $3,600 (Lump Sum) 
Task 6 – Impaired Waters Sampling                                      $2,100 (Lump Sum) 



TASK ORDER FORM 
 
 

 
P:\Fayetteville GA\Client Mgmt\TOFs\TOF 209E 2022 NDPES Compliance Assistance.docx 
 Page 6 of 6 

Task 7 – Impaired Waters Plan Annual Reports   $2,000 (Lump Sum) 
Task 8 – Municipal Facility Inspection               $500 (Lump Sum) 
Task 9 – Pre-Submittal Planning Meeting               $1,000 (Lump Sum) 
 
Total Contract Amount      $44,890 
 
 
 

 
 
 

AUTHORIZATION
 
The Scope of Services outlined herein will be performed in accordance with ISE’s Master Services 
Agreement with City of Fayetteville dated November 2019.  As our authorization, please sign in the space 
provided below. 
 
City of Fayetteville Integrated Science & Engineering, Inc. 
 

Signature:  Signature:  

Name:  Name: Jason Ray, GISP 

Title:  Title: Principal 

Date:  Date: March 21, 2022 
 

 



RESOLUTION R-12-22 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE TO APPROVE THE 

ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR THE 2022 NATIONAL POLLUTANT 

DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM PERMIT COMPLIANCE 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Fayetteville in the best interest of its citizens has approved an 

Engineering Services Contract with Integrated Science Engineering which includes services 

pertaining to compliance with the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) 

administered through the Georgia Environmental Protection Division (GA EPD); and  

 

WHEREAS, the City of Fayetteville relies on the Engineering Consultant to perform such 

tasks due to the engineering requirements outlined in complying with the permit; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Fayetteville has received and reviewed Task Order Number 209E 

which outlines the necessary scope of services required needed to meet the compliance items 

outlined by GA EPD in the amount of $44,890.; and 

 

IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Fayetteville 

that the Compliance Cost in Task Order Form Number 209E is approved and that the City 

Manager is authorized to sign the Task Order Form for Engineering Services. 

 

SO RESOLVED this 21st day of April, 2022. 

 

_____________________________   ______________________________ 

Edward J. Johnson, Jr., Mayor   T. Joe Clark, Mayor Pro Tem 

Attest:       ______________________________ 

       Niyah Glover, Councilmember 

_____________________________   ______________________________ 

Anne Barksdale, City Clerk    Richard J. Hoffman, Councilmember 

       ______________________________ 

       Darryl Langford, Councilmember 

       ______________________________ 

       Scott Stacy, Councilmember   

        















RESOLUTION R-15-22 

 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE TO APPROVE THE 

BID AWARD FOR THE CHURCH STREET PARK PLAYGROUND IMPROVEMENTS 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Fayetteville, in the best interest of its citizens, has developed a Capital 

Improvement Project to replace existing playground equipment at Church Street Park; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Fayetteville received a bid through our competitive bid process from 

GameTime in the amount of $104,808.95 for all of the work necessary to perform the stormwater 

work for the Church Street Park Playground Improvements; and 

 

IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Fayetteville that the 

Capital Improvement Project for the Church Street Playground improvements be approved and 

awarded to GameTime in the amount of $104,808.95, and that the Mayor be authorized to sign 

any contract for construction services. 

 

SO RESOLVED this 21st day of April, 2022. 

 

_____________________________   ______________________________ 

Edward J. Johnson, Jr., Mayor   T. Joe Clark, Mayor Pro Tem 

Attest:       ______________________________ 

       Niyah Glover, Councilmember 

_____________________________   ______________________________ 

Anne Barksdale, City Clerk    Richard J. Hoffman, Councilmember 

       ______________________________ 

       Darryl Langford, Councilmember 

       ______________________________ 

       Scott Stacy, Councilmember   

        



STEP ONE ANNEXATION 
APPLICATION 
210 Stonewall Avenue West 

Fayetteville, GA 30214 
770-719-4177

WWW.FAYETTEVILLE -GA .GOV 

Annexation Application  www.fayetteville-ga.gov 
Revised 12/28/2021 

A
N

N
EX

A
TI

O
N

 
M

ET
H

O
D

 

100% Methodology 60% Methodology 

x Application requires signatures or
signed letters of approval of all current
property owners.

x Required signatures or signed letters of approval by
property owners of at least 60% of the total
annexation acreage.

x Requires signed petition by 60% of registered voters
in the annexation area. Signatures must include the
address and be dated within one (1) year of the Step
Two application submittal.

A
N

N
EX

A
TI

O
N

 P
A

R
C

EL
(S

) 

Parcel ID#: Address: Signature: ,QGLFDWH�VLJQHH¶V�
role at the address: 

Date: 

Owner Voter 

Owner Voter 

Owner Voter 

Owner Voter 

Owner Voter 

Owner  Voter 

Owner Voter 

You may attach a separate list of parcels/ signatures, or provide a copy of individual signed and dated letters 

A
P

P
LI

C
A

N
T 

O
R

 
P

R
O

JE
C

T 
R

EP
R

ES
EN

TA
TI

V
E 

Name ____________________________ 

Address __________________________ 

Phone # __________________________ 

Email ____________________________ 

A
TT

O
R

N
EY

 Name _______________________________ 

Address _____________________________ 

Phone # _____________________________ 

Email _______________________________ 

O
W

N
ER

S
 

Name _______________________________________________________________________________ 

Address _____________________________________________________________________________ 

City, State, Zip ________________________________________________________________________ 

Phone # _____________________________________________________________________________ 

Email ________________________________________________________________________________ 

P
R

O
P

O
S

ED
 

D
EV

EL
O

P
M

EN
T Potential Zoning Category Request: 

Brief Description: 

%XVLQHVV�3DUN�

0HJDQ�%DNHU�

0705 003 Flat Creek Trail
0712 015 Flat Creek Trail
0712 074 Flat Creek Trail
0713 020 177 Tyrone Rd

Fayetteville, GA 30214
200 Courthouse Square

919-332-1078
mbaker@fayettega.org

The proposed development is a technology/business park campus.





Supporting Narrative 
General Description 
The proposed development is a technology/business park campus. The City’s Comprehensive 
Plan has identified this area of Fayetteville as suitable for business park. The development will 
also create jobs, which is one of the goals identified in the comprehensive plan.  Additionally, 
adjacent to the proposed development is Trilith Studios to the east, which aligns well with the 
proposed project.  
 
 
Transportation 
The overall development, which includes other parcels zoned business park in the City of 
Fayetteville (0713 021, 0704 035, and 0704 008), will front Highway 54, Flat Creek Trail, and 
Tyrone Road.  In December 2020, a Development of Regional Impact (DRI) decision regarding a 
data center campus on parcel 0704 008 listed required improvements to meet applicable 
standards. The expanded development will likely warrant a DRI when plans are finalized and will 
ensure that the road infrastructure meets the proposed development. Additionally, the 
proposed project is projected to generate 100 jobs, which will not create traffic congestion.  
 
Housing 
There are no proposed residential housing units.  
 
Economic Development 
The total of capital expenditure over the life of the project is projected to surpass $1B., which 
will significantly increase tax revenue for the City of Fayetteville. The current parcels generate 
$1387 in property tax annually. This will increase to over $200,000 annually after the first phase 
of development.  
 
The project will initially generate over 100 direct new jobs with average salaries of $100,000 or 
higher.  
 
Land Use 
The proposed land use is a technology/business park campus as permitted under the Business 
Park zoning outlined in Sec. 94-171. The development is also compatible with the Future Land 
Use Map, which has adjacent parcels zoned for Business Park. Any impacts to the natural 
environment will be mitigated as required by City of Fayetteville ordinances.  
 



Survey 
 
Belo are the parcel IDs, acreage, surrounding uses, and existing/proposed city limits. The survey 
for parcel 0713 020 is also included. The other parcels will be surveyed as part of the proposed 
development’s due diligence.  
 
Regarding natural, geological, and/ or cultural resources, there is a small cemetery 200 feet 
west of parcel 0713 020.  
 
 
 

 



 



H
U

IE
T 

R
O

A
D

HIGHWAY 54 WEST

HOOD ROAD

SANDY CREEK ROAD

T Y R O N E
R

O
A

D

OTTER CIRCLE

SU
N

D
ER

LA
N

D
 C

IR
C

LE

BEAVERBROOK LANE

RISING
 M

IST DRIVE

H I G H W A Y 5 4 W E S T

LESTER ROAD

OLD CHAPEL LANE

GLADE KNO
LL

TRAIL

GRAND TETON CIRCLE

HAMBRICK PARK

BARBARA
COURT

M
ICHELLE

TRAIL

BROCK

COURT

M
INNIE

CO
URT

SANDY CREEK RO
AD

O
L D N O R T O N R OAD

O
LD

 SA
N

D
Y C

R
EEK

 R
O

A
D

TO
G

W
AT

EE
 V

IL
LA

GE 
PA

R
K

W
AY

4TH ST

C
E

N
T

R
A

L 
A

V
E

ROYCROFT LN

H
E

A
T

H
E

R
D

E
N

 A
V

E

GUILD LN

3RD ST
KELMSCOTT LN

GLASGOW LN

2ND ST

BREAKSPEAR LN

HIGH ST

IVER PL

T
R

IL
IT

H
 P

A
R

K
W

A
Y

Ve
te

ra
ns

 P
ar

kw
ay

SHEPPERTO
N W

AY

TRILITH PARKW
AY

REED W
AY

5TH ST

A
R

C
A

D
IA

 A
V

E





 
Legal Descriptions 

 
Below is the legal description for parcels 0713 020, 0705 003 and 0712 074. There is no legal 
description for 0712 015.  
 
Parcel 0713 020 

 



 
Parcel 0705 003 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 



 
  
0712 074 

 



















 
 

TO: Mayor and Council  

 

VIA: Ray Gibson, City Manager    

 

FROM:  Anne Barksdale, City Clerk       

   

DATE:  April 20, 2022 

 

SUBJECT:   Executive Session   

 

 

Staff is requesting to meet in Executive Session to discuss Potential Litigation.  

 


	Top
	1.	Minutes 4-7-22
	2.	GFOA Distinguished Budget Presentation Award
	Budget Award Memo - 2022

	3.	#0-9-22 - 1302 Highway 85 North, Rezoning
	Staff Report _Tesla_db _City Council
	Elevations and Site Plan_ Tesla_Final
	#0-09-22 - Tesla rezoning

	4.	R-12-22 - NPDES Compliance Engineering Services for 2022
	Memo - R-12-22 2022 NPDES Compliance TOF 209E
	TOF 209E 2022 NDPES Compliance Assistance
	R-12-22 - 2022 NPDES Compliance TOF 209E

	5.	R-15-22 - Bid Award for Church Street Park Playground Improvements
	Memo & Church St. Packet
	R-15-22 - Church St. Park (2)

	6.	Step One Annexation - FCDA
	Step One_combined_4.15.22

	7.	Executive Session
	Memo

	Bottom

